
AD HOC TRANSITION COMMITTEE MINUTES

August 21, 2014

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Rausch at 5:30 p.m.

Members Present: J.R. Rausch, Henk Berbee, Tracy Richardson, Mayor Gore, Jenny 
Chavarria, Brian Dostanko

Others Present: Dublin Assistant City Manager Michelle Crandall, Westerville City 
Manager David Collinsworth, Tim Aslaner, Anna Krutowskis

Approval of Minutes: The minutes from the meeting on June 26, 2014 were approved as
written

Agenda:

Presentations on Council-City Manager Form of Government from Visiting 
Community Leaders:  Dublin Assistant City Manager Michelle Crandall and 
Westerville City Manager David Collinsworth each provided the Ad Hoc Transition
Committee members with copies of their municipalities Council Rules of Procedure and 
Organizational Charts.

Mr. Rausch introduced all committee members to Ms. Crandall and Mr. Collinsworth.
Mr. Rausch explained how and why the Ad Hoc Transition Committee was formed.  He 
said the committee started in April/May of 2014 and we would like to have the proposed 
new rules/procedures, changes, responsibilities before Council by January.  There are 
many communities that are functioning well, working under the Council-Manager form 
of government such as Westerville and Dublin, so it made sense to the committee to 
invite these municipalities for conversations regarding their best practices.

Mayor Gore said I’m glad that the change of government passed.  We have a great 
community that continues to grow, which makes this change in form of government even 
more necessary. It will allow us to go forward professionally.

Question and Answer Period:  A list of questions were prepared by the committee 
members and sent to Mr. Collinsworth and Ms. Crandall in advance to review and 
prepare before the August 21, 2014 meeting and are attached to these minutes.

Leading in to the first question, Mayor Gore explained the recent passing of Council 
Clerk Connie Patterson to Mr. Collinsworth and Ms. Crandall.  Mr. Rausch stated that 
Ms. Patterson’s recent passing and the future change in form of government led to the 
first question.  In 2016, is the Clerk of Council a position something that could 
potentially be a shared position as it’s temporarily being done now, or does Council need 
our own clerk?



Ms. Crandall stated it’s probably case by case depending on the needs of the City.  
Dublin currently has a Clerk of Council and an Assistant Clerk of Council.  As the City 
grew they had a need for an Assistant Clerk.  Mayor Gore asked if the Clerk (s) in Dublin
attend all committee, board and commission meetings?  Ms. Crandall stated no, only the 
council meetings and council committee meetings.  Staff attends the boards and 
commissions meetings.  Mr. Aslaner asked if the clerk of council is responsible for typing
the meeting minutes for the boards and commissions meetings.  Ms. Crandall said no, 
that is done by staff members who attend the meetings but all paperwork from the 
meetings, including minutes are then turned in to the clerk’s office.

Mr. Collinsworth said Westerville has one full-time clerk of council and her 
responsibilities are comparable to the City of Dublin’s clerk.  The clerk is appointed by 
council, reports to council.

Mr. Collinsworth stated that at a previous municipality he worked for, the clerk of 
council did everything and they realized that if anything ever happened to her, they 
would be in trouble because there was no back up.  After the clerk retired, the city 
decided to restructure.  The city decided to parcel up some of the clerk’s responsibilities 
among other staff members and hired an employee to serve a dual role as an executive 
assistant to the city manager and the clerk of council.  The position can be tailored to fit 
your needs.  You may want to start out with a part-time or shared position but, if you find
that you need to change it, you have the flexibility to do so.  

Mr. Dostanko asked whether the are clerks exempt under FSLA and are they Civil 
Service Classified?  Mr. Collinsworth replied unclassified position and a direct appointee 
of council.

Mr. Rausch asked about the hiring process for the city manager.  Mr. Collinsworth said 
that most communities hire a recruiter.  He said it’s really up to the council as a whole to 
determine how sophisticated of a search they want.  It depends on how much work you 
want to do yourself but there are many options.  As with any selection process, you work 
your way down with the interviews.  He suggested that the majority of the process be 
done by council as a whole.  Possibly designate the council president to be the liaison
with a recruiter but all other parts are typically done as a whole.

Ms. Crandall said the city is currently in the process of hiring for a new city manager.  
Dublin sent out an RFP to search firms. The range to hire a search firm is $20,000-
$30,000.  The Vice Mayor is handling the process as the liaison with the executive search
firm.  Council has chosen to be actively involved in the process as a whole.

Mayor said we are part of Central Ohio news now due to our growth and the industry 
such as Honda and Scotts in our community.  Our projected population in 2050 is 
approximately 40,000-50,000.  The next hire for a city manager may be required to use a 
recruiter but so far we have been able to use our Human Resource Department to do so.



Mayor Gore asked about collective bargaining.  Who does your negotiations and 
contracts?  Ms. Crandall said our HR Director does all negotiations and he consults with 
the city law director at times.  Mayor Gore stated Mr. Dostanko is responsible for our 
negotiations and contracts and he has done a great job. 

Mr. Rausch asked Ms. Crandall what the Administrative Committee entails for the City 
of Dublin.  Ms. Crandall said that they oversee the evaluations of the City Manager and 
Clerk of Council and look at personnel policies.  They are also looking at other policies 
and procedures.  

Mr. Collinsworth said a lot of communities have this type of committee structure such as 
a law committee, administrative committee and public works committee.  Every 
community I have worked for however, has worked as a committee as a whole; meaning 
they didn’t have sub-committees.  Council has work sessions and meet twice a month.  
The purpose of the work sessions is to bring issues that would otherwise be brought 
before sub committees for Council to review as a whole before taking formal action on 
them later.  He asked the Ad Hoc Committee members to think about 2016 and if they 
want to operate more as a whole committee or designate three council members here and 
there to deal with issues.  From my standpoint, I like the structure of a committee as a 
whole because it helps with the communication process.  All council members are getting
the same information at the same time.

Mr. Berbee asked Mr. Collinsworth how much staff is involved at the working sessions?  
Mr. Collinsworth said that work sessions typically involve a staff presentation of 
information about the topic/agenda item.  The information would be provided to 
members of Council prior to the work session for review.  The work sessions are staff 
driven; they prepare the information and present it to Council, who reacts and gives staff 
direction.  They may tell them to prepare the legislation.

Mr. Berbee asked how long do the meetings typically take?  Mr. Collinsworth replied, 
normally one to two hours depending on the subject.

Mayor Gore said that when you discuss subjects at work sessions as council as a whole, 
in essence it’s decided before you even place it on the agenda, isn’t it?  Mr. Collinsworth 
said that this does allow for an early vetting process.  It’s an opportunity for Council to 
get the information at the same time and react at the same time.

Mrs. Richardson asked Mr. Collinsworth, if at the end of the work sessions whether 
Council votes on whatever they are discussing on whether to put it on the agenda?  Mr. 
Collinsworth stated no.  Usually the Chairman of Council will go around the table and 
ask questions if there are no objections they know the direction they are going to take.

Mr. Aslaner asked whether they ever go into executive session at work sessions.  Mr. 
Collinsworth said yes.  



Ms. Crandall said in Dublin, if one of the council committees knows in advance that they 
will need an executive session, they schedule a “Special Meeting of Council.”

Mr. Rausch asked who performs the evaluation of the City Manager.

Ms. Crandall stated ours are done annually by all council members.  An evaluation of the 
Manager is filled out by each council member.  Council will then go into executive 
session to discuss evaluations.

Mr. Collinsworth said we also have a formal/annual evaluation performed by council.

Mr. Rausch asked whether the Chair of Council also has the title, Mayor?  Mr. 
Collinsworth stated no.  They have a Chairman and Vice Chairman instead of Mayor and 
Vice Mayor.  

Mr. Rausch asked what specific roles do the Mayor and Vice Mayor have?  Ms. Crandall 
said ours is very similar to Marysville’s.  They preside over council, perform ceremonial 
functions.  They may also work Mayors Court but also have the option of selecting one or
more magistrates to preside over Mayors Court.  For ceremonial functions, they are very 
laid back meaning whoever is available- whether it’s the Mayor or Council, they attend.

Mr. Collinsworth said Westerville City Council also likes to share the responsibilities of 
attending ceremonial events.

Mr. Rausch asked about succession planning.  Who is next in line if the City Manager is 
on vacation?  

Ms. Crandall said it goes, Assistant City Manager, Development Director, Public Service 
Director, Finance Director and then the Police Chief.  

Mr. Rausch asked does it ever go to council?  Ms. Crandall stated no.

Mayor Gore stated that under the new Charter language, the “City Manager shall 
designate a City employee to exercise the powers and perform the duties of the City 
Manager during the absence or disability of the City Manager.  Council may revoke such 
designation at any time and appoint another employee of the City to serve as acting City 
Manager.”

Mr. Rausch asked how much communication and interaction occurs between council 
members and city staff.  Ms. Crandall said in Dublin there is quite a bit. Dublin’s City 
Manager allows staff to communicate with Council.  Just like any citizen that could call 
and speak to a city employee.

Mr. Collinsworth said the key is that Council isn’t directing any affairs.  A good standard 
is that you don’t lose privileges as a council member but the key is to where the line 
needs to be drawn.  For example, if a member reports a resident with tall grass it should 



be left at that.  If the council member then tells the city employee that they want it taken 
care of by a certain date; that is not acceptable.  From a communication standpoint, there 
should be no surprises.  If staff speaks to council members they should keep the City 
Manager in the loop.

Mrs. Richardson asked Mr. Collinsworth, how he gives reports to Council?  Mr. 
Collinsworth said he gives a Friday report which is a summary of information that he 
wants council to be aware of.  It can range from 1 to 4 pages.  He also emails council 
periodically, maybe once or twice a week about items that may be sensitive in nature or a 
phone call. 

Mayor Gore stated this is not much different from what we currently do.

Ms. Crandall said we email Council members information several times a day.  We also 
include an information only section to Council in the Council Packets.  It really depends 
on what council wants.

Mr. Rausch asked what would be your one piece of advice in making the transition 
smooth?  Mr. Collinsworth said over-communicating (especially in the beginning) is key,
sharing information equally, and publicly praise/privately criticize.

Mayor Gore asked how often do you talk to Council members during the week?  Mr. 
Collinsworth said it depends on the council member.  There are some that I talk to every 
day of the week and others that I will go a week without talking to.

Mayor Gore said even though we are a non-partisan government, it’s still political.  You 
two make the form of government sound wonderful, if everyone gets along and trusts 
each other.  Have you experienced councils that have a lack of trust or political 
aspirations, where it wasn’t smooth?

Mr. Collinsworth replied yes.  It does happen from time to time and that’s where the city 
managers human relation skills and interpersonal skills need to take over.  From council’s
perspective, you hope that you have a chairperson who is strong willed enough to pull the
council member aside and protect your charter.

Mr. Rausch said we currently have great communication between the administration and 
council, however twenty years from now, there could be a rogue council member.  We 
are trying to put parameters in place for not only when things are good, but also when 
they aren’t so good.

Mrs. Richardson added council is also looking at policies too.  Mr. Collinsworth stated a 
policy that many cities have is a “Political Activities Policy” and is very helpful. 

Mrs. Richardson asked whether most of the communication is initiated by the city 
manager to council or by council to the city manager?  Mr. Collinsworth replied most of 
it is initiated from me to council, but some members are contacting me via email, phone 



or stopping by the office on a regular basis.

Ms. Crandall said it’s 50/50 for us.

Mr. Rausch asked whether there is any involvement of city council regarding hiring or 
firing of division heads?  Ms. Crandall said it’s the city manager’s responsibility.  They 
typically work close with the Human Resource Director and inform council after the fact.

Mr. Collinsworth said if you are terminating a fire chief or police chief, you will 
obviously have discussions with council before it occurs.  The farther down you go 
within the organization, I still make sure that I inform council of a firing.  For the hiring 
process, once we get to the final stage, I will bring in a few council members in for a 
meet and greet so they can give me an initial feel.  Obviously they know that the decision
is mine, but when I’m asking them to confirm a candidate, I don’t want their first time 
seeing the candidate to be the night that they vote at council.

Ms. Crandall said that Dublin’s Finance Director and Law Director are the two positions 
that require confirmation from council.

Mr. Rausch said, as we are redrafting our rules of procedure for council, what pitfalls 
should we avoid?  Ms. Crandall stated the good thing about rules of order, is you can 
change them when you need to.  

Mr. Berbee asked have you had much change in council members?  If you have a new 
council member do you have a meet and greet or do you have a teaching session?  Mr. 
Collinsworth said that anytime we have a new council member, we have a pretty 
significant orientation process.  They will spend a morning with department heads 
listening to highlights and concerns in each respective department.  In the afternoon they 
will tour city facilities.  They also receive a copy of the 5-year Financial Budget Plan.  

Ms. Crandall said we do something similar but we also do a long orientation with all 
council candidates as part of the process.  

Mr. Rausch commented that I’m the most recently elected and the city did a nice 
orientation for me. 

Mr. Rausch said I know that Dublin has a yearly retreat, goal setting, and pretty formal 
process.  Ms. Crandall said this is one of those things that are critical to allow council to 
get on the same page with the big picture goals.  We structure it so that our council is 
meeting in February/March if we can, because we want to have our CIP and our budget 
process followed.  It’s a great road map for the city manager and their staff to follow.

Mr. Aslaner commented, “So you’re not talking about work sessions, you’re talking 
about off-site meetings?”  Ms. Crandall said, right.  We are coming up with 5-7 goals, 
however many you want to come up with; ours are 2 year goals.



Mrs. Richardson asked whether you have everyone in an off-site situation for maybe a 
weekend, or how does that work?  Ms. Crandall replied, we usually do a Friday night 
over dinner and then all day Saturday.  Mrs. Richardson asked whether it’s public?  Ms. 
Crandall said, yes.  There have only been a few times that the press has showed up.

Mrs. Richardson said, when I think about a really good way of mapping, that is such a 
critical part and then you have the entire team on board.  Not just the council but when I 
think about a Council-Manager form of government, you have both forms focused on the 
same mission, with the same goals.  Trying to move everyone forward, and as you move 
forward and are executing that stuff you are sharing information. You are actually team 
building while you’re doing that.

Mayor Gore said this is the day to day operations that you run (not that you keep 
anything from council) but, what is the percentage of your day to day routine that council
is not even aware of that you are doing other than the big picture operations of the City?  
Ms. Crandall replied, 95%.  Mr. Collinsworth stated the biggest lion’s share of it.  Mayor 
Gore said that’s why I asked.  In talking with council members, I’m getting the 
impression that a lot of our council members want to know everything that goes on 
everyday, even the simple stuff.  There’s probably a 5%, maybe even less with council.  
Maybe I mis-interpreted what you said Tracy about the team building.  Mrs. Richardson 
stated, I don’t want to know the details of how you are doing your job.  What I was 
saying is that in the big picture, both sides of this leadership team are moving in the same
direction; it makes for a fluid government.

Mr. Collinsworth said it’s important to remind council members that want to row, that 
they are there to steer and set policy for the overall direction of the community.  Staff 
members are here to do the rowing.

Mr. Rausch asked Mr. Dostanko and Ms. Chavarria whether they have any specific 
questions?  Ms. Chavarria stated no, I’m familiar with the Manager-Council form of 
government; it’s where I came from.  I agree whole heartedly that communication is the 
key.

Mr. Aslaner said one of the concerns that I have heard is regarding communication 
between the manager and council.  Other than the weekly and bi-weekly reports that you 
send to council, it sounds like you don’t have any established protocol or limitations.  

Mr. Collinsworth said email seems to be the best way to communicate because everyone 
is getting the same information, but I have most conversations with my council chair.
Again, I think it’s a matter of responding in-kind with what you sense and perceive as the
information needs of the individual elected officials. 

Mayor Gore stated that you have confirmed a lot and I appreciate your willingness to 
come here this evening.



Ms. Crandall said thank you for inviting us, it’s been a great opportunity.  Dave and I 
have both been very active in Ohio City Managers and International City Managers.  
Dave has been on the speaking circuit with communities that are looking at changing 
their form of government.

Mr. Collinsworth said there are several right now.  Circleville has a strong interest in 
changing their form of government.

Mr. Rausch asked who would be someone good to talk to from there?  Mr. Collinsworth 
replied, Tom Spring, he’s a council member.  I was at their last charter commission 
meeting.  

Mr. Berbee addressed Ms. Crandall, “I know that Dublin is fortunate in that sometimes 
the day time population is double what the night time population is.  Are there any 
concerns with House Bill 5?”  Ms. Crandall stated that Dublin and Westerville are both 
very concerned and have a pretty intensive lobbying effort going on.

Mayor Gore stated I met with Senator Olslager and Faye Gibson (City of Dublin Tax 
Administrator) regarding HB5.

Mr. Berbee asked whether the make-up of Westerville is similar to Dublin in that you 
have so many outside people coming in. Mr. Collinsworth replied yes, there is a big 
switch going on every morning and every evening.  About eighty percent of our income 
tax revenue comes from non-resident sources.

Adjournment: Mr. Rausch adjourned the meeting at 7:25 pm.


